BIRMINGHAM AREA CABLE BOARD MEETING

Wednesday, May 20, 2020 at 7:45 am

This meeting will be held remotely via ZOOM

- 1. Roll Call
- 2. Approve Meeting Minutes for Cable Board Meeting of April 22, 2020-M
- 3. Public Comments
- 4. PEG Grant Request-Franklin Historical Society-M
- 5. Approval of Contract for Closed Captioning-M
- 6. Approval of Additional Budget Amendments for FY 2019-20-M
- 7. Committee Reports
 - a. Cable Action Committee
 - b. PEG Committee
 - c. Personnel Committee
- 8. Executive Director's Report
- 9. Provider Related Topics
 - a. Comcast
 - b. AT&T
 - c. WOW
- 10. BAPA/BAMA Report
- 11. Old Business
- 12. New Business
- 13. Public Comments
- 14. Board Comments
- 15. Adjourn

PEG Committee Meeting Immediately Following the Regular Meeting

BIRMINGHAM AREA CABLE BOARD MEETING MINUTES - April 22, 2020

Present:	Abraham, Eick, Fenberg, McLain, Shand - Birmingham
	Burry, Delaney, Gugni, Henry – Beverly Hills
	Mydloski – Franklin
Absent	None
Also Present:	White - BACB Executive Director
	Currier – Attorney for Cable Board
	Rota – Bloomfield Community Television
	Brunk – IT Manager, City of Birmingham

McLain called the meeting to order at 7:45 AM via Remote Zoom.us meeting.

Happy Earth Day!

APPROVE MINUTES OF CABLE BOARD MEETING HELD February 19, 2020.

Motion by Eick, seconded by Delaney to approve the minutes of the Cable Board Meeting on February 19, 2020, as presented.

Roll Call Vote: Motion Passed (10-0).

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Eric Brunk, IT Manager, City of Birmingham, was the host for this meeting and checked if there were any members from the public who wanted to be heard. There were none.

TREASURER'S REPORT

Fenberg reported on the Multi Bank Securities maturities. Because of a huge improvement over the money market, Chas recommended a transfer of funds to purchase a one-year CD. The next maturity would be coming in this April.

APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2019-20

White explained this was a yearly request from the Auditors. If any of the budget categories were at or slightly over the budgeted amounts the Auditors liked to see a budget amendment. There were a few categories which needed to be increased: Administrative Grants awarded to the four communities would be increased from \$105,740.00 to \$379,168.00; Equipment would be increased from \$20,000.00 to \$65, 000.00 for purchases recently authorized by the Board; and PEG Grants would be increased from \$103,800.00 to \$150,000.00 to reflect the Grants awarded this year and in anticipation of receiving requests between now and June 30, 2020 (the end of the Budget year).

Motion by Fenberg, seconded by Burry that the Birmingham Area Cable Board does hereby authorize the following amendments to the FY 2019-2020 BACB Budget: <u>Administrative Grants</u> – Increase the annual amount from \$105,740.00 to \$379,168.00. <u>Equipment Expenses</u> – Increase from \$20,000.00 to \$65,000.00. <u>PEG Grants</u> – Increase from \$103,800.00 to \$150,000.00. Roll Call Vote: Motion Passed (10-0).

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Cable Action Committee

Abraham reported that the committee did not have a meeting last month, as there was nothing to discuss.

Due to the "Stay at Home" order, he anticipated the next CAC meeting would be May 7 at 4:30 PM (virtual).

McLean inquired of Currier about subcommittees. Currier responded that subcommittees were required to have a Zoom meeting just like a regular body subcommittee and would follow the same procedures.

PEG Committee

Mydloski reported there had been a meeting following the last Board meeting in February with Rota, McLain, White, and herself. There had been discussions about the Board-approved playback and server process, White sending Advance Lighting and Sound half of the deposit for the approved truck expense, sporting events and other events BCTV facilitates and the average cost of BCTV facilitating local programming. McLain had mentioned that the "White Board" was still in disrepair, so that was also discussed.

Rota reported that due to the closure of the schools, BCTV would not be covering any spring sports this year. Hopefully in July or August there would be word as to whether schools would resume in the fall, which would mean that BCTV would be covering fall sports. Replying to McLain's inquiry, Rota stated that all the meetings and some of the Baldwin library lectures had been replaying on the government channel and on the public side reruns of the 20+ series had been playing. He has reached out to producers to see if any wanted to start doing shows on Zoom. Some have taken him up on the offer. As of yet he has not rerun any of the last spring's sporting events but would consider the idea.

McLain thanked Rota for performing multiple tasks during this unusual period and expressed her appreciation for his efforts in keeping the channels connected and informed.

Personnel Committee

Several weeks ago Gugni sent out forms for the annual evaluation of the Executive Director. So far he has received only three (3) back. He encouraged the Board to look at them, fill them out, and send them back. If members wished to add a narrative, please do so. The format of the form has changed; he felt it was much better.

McLean requested they be sent to Gugni by Friday of this week. She felt this was simpler and a more objective way to give feedback on the one part-time employee.

Burry inquired if he could scan his evaluation and send it to Gugni.

McLean questioned Currier if it was possible to do White's evaluation on Zoom. Currier answered in the positive and pointed out that it would be just like a regular meeting, but in this case it would be an open subcommittee meeting. The evaluation meeting would be a closed session and held in a virtual separate "room", after which it would return to a regular subcommittee meeting.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

White referred to her monthly report dated April 16, 2020. This had been a quiet month due to the nation experiencing the Covid-19 pandemic; however, Comcast has assured her that they were doing business as usual. On the BACB website there were statements by all three (3) providers responding to this unusual situation regarding complaints and people who couldn't pay their bills. There had been two (2) complaints since her last report. The first (1st) complaint came from a Beverly Hills resident, who was not a WOW customer; however, had a WOW line laying on the ground in his back yard. His neighbors were WOW customers and the wire was to be buried in the spring. The escalation team has since decided the wire would be run overhead. The resident was satisfied and this complaint was closed. The second (2nd) complaint was from a Franklin resident and had been submitted on BACB's website. The resident initially wanted to cancel his service with Comcast but had been convinced to continue and upgrade under a promotional plan. Comcast had agreed to send him internet-extending pods at no charge; however, they never arrived. After another call the customer was instructed to go to a Comcast store and pick up the free pods. The store told him he could not have them for free. After speaking with several people at Comcast and being given several different stories he spoke with a supervisor. She told him she would send him the pods if he paid for them and he might get credit afterwards. The customer felt he had been defrauded and wanted Comcast to resolve this issue by giving him what he had been promised. This complaint is pending. McLain added that she had taken some complaint calls and assisted some subscribers. She reminded the public that at the beginning of all calls to a provider to take down the name and ID numbers of the people with whom he or she speaks and take detailed notes about the conversations.

FINANCIAL

Financial information for MBS, BBCU and Beverly Hills accounts as of March 31, 2020 was emailed to all Board members.

Since the last Board meeting White has written eleven (11) checks on behalf of the BACB. Of those were the Administrative Grants which were the excess franchise fees going back to the four (4) communities, the PEG Grant to Advanced Lighting & Sound for equipment for the Village of Franklin, and the quarterly contract payment (January to March 2020) for BCTV. The remaining checks were for smaller items.

ADDITIONAL NOTES:

Comcast has notified BACB about the opening of a new Xfinity store on Telegraph Rd. in Southfield. The FCC NET Neutrality Docket was heating up again. She detailed the issues. Comcast has made some programing changes which she included in her written report. BACB received a report that Comcast's CEO and other top executives were donating 100% of their salaries to a charity supporting Covid-19 relief efforts. Additionally, a \$500 million employee fund had been set up to support their employees with continued pay and benefits when the operations had been paused or impacted during these challenging times. Comcast reported that voice over-internet (voIP) and video conferencing was up 228% and due to the Covid-19 pandemic there was a 37% increase in streaming and video consumption. Those spikes in usage were within their capabilities. The Annual Report had been completed and was submitted in the Board's packet. Due to revisions, she sent out a newer version yesterday.

McLain thanked and applauded White for all her behind the scenes efforts to keep BACB moving in the right direction.

PROVIDER RELATED TOPICS

No representatives from the providers were available to call in; however, all three (3) communicated with BACB as could be seen on the BACB web site. All three (3) were doing their best to provide service to all who needed it and to provide free service to those who would have no access at all. As McLain said in the Annual Report, this was an unprecedented partnership in many ways.

a. Comcast

There was no representative present.

b. AT&T/Uverse/Direct TV

There was no representative present.

c. WOW

There was no representative present.

McLain reminded residents that this would be a good time to review their bill and understand what they had in terms of equipment and that all three (3) providers would exchange it if necessary. She further explained the new streaming services launched by AT&T which do not contribute to the cable TV franchise and PEG fees. As people transfer over to streaming, the Cable Board understands this would impact the revenue stream and has planned for this.

Abraham brought to McLain's attention that on the front page of the BACB website under News and Announcements there was a message only from Comcast. She would look into that and further mentioned that the providers could send information about new services which could be put on the BACB site or provide a link. However, she emphasized that the website was not an advertising arm.

BAPA/BAMA REPORT

Rota clarified that his report goes back to February 20, 2020 since the March meeting had been cancelled.

Rota referred to his memo to BACB dated March 10, 2020. All regularly scheduled **BAMA** meetings were covered. For the **BAPA** Programs, from the BACB area individual producers and organizations, twenty (20) programs were taped, all of which he listed. These included studio

shows and those on-location lectures. When Covid-19 began a lot of the lectures and other events during the last half of March and April were cancelled; therefore, no other shows were taped. However, BCTV has allowed producers to do shows through Zoom. Within the last three (3) weeks, ten (10) shows have been done. He predicted that those numbers would grow if the social distancing requirement continues.

PRODUCER and/or VOLUNTEER WORKSHOP – The studio was closed to the public but workshops will be offered when it reopens. People can call now to make appointments, especially for June and later in the year. Please call 248-433-7790 and BCTV will schedule a date and time for you.

No spring sports will be covered due to the school closures. Hopefully, in the fall BCTV will get back to covering those sports.

Even though this is a tough time the studio and staff are working hard. The four communities are still doing their monthly or bi-monthly meetings through Zoom. Eric Brunk, IT Manager for Birmingham has been a big help setting up Zoom for the live City of Birmingham Commission, Zoning Board and Planning Board meetings and he makes sure that the live feed is operational so those meetings can be seen live or when they are scheduled. Those files are put up on the BCTV website to keep it current. Rota has been working from home. He has set up a portable switcher so that those few meetings that have been cancelled, those meetings that are not going live or for residents who want to do a show, can be worked on from his home. BCTV was teaming up with West Bloomfield Cable Communications Commission which does 2-hour live podcasts Monday through Friday, 10 AM – 12 Noon. There is a live feed on BAPA and BAMA between 10 and Noon. There is also a direct link from the BACB website with Covid-19 updates.

McLain thanked Rota for coordinating with Dave Scott and Dave Albery of the West Bloomfield Cable Commission. She added that there are not only interviews with local officials and international officials and news, but also what was happening in the local municipalities.

Delaney mentioned he watched the Beverly Hills Council meeting last night. He thinks that the Memorial Day parade has been cancelled. Rota might want to clarify this issue with the Village. Rota was not sure if the Celebrate Birmingham parade was also cancelled.

Eick thanked Rota for volunteering at the Seaholm Career Day to host a number of students at the studio. Unfortunately, that too has been cancelled but it is a big event every year.

OLD BUSINESS

McLain thanked Bingham Farms which decided to put their meetings on cable TV and now online. The Village is very thankful they started this process six (6) months ago (with BCTV's help) so residents had access to the decision-making process during this critical time. They are very appreciative of what Rota has done.

NEW BUSINESS

McLain stated that the next meeting would be on Zoom unless something dramatically changes.

White would keep the Board posted. She also thanked White and the Treasurer for keeping a watchful eye on investments during these uncertain times.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

McLain thanked Eric Brunk.

BOARD COMMENTS

White also expressed her appreciation to Brunk, IT Manager from Birmingham.

McLain welcomed Shane Henry, the newest member of the Board. He thanked Rota for giving Mydloski and him a tour of the studio facilities. He further commented that the Board has never had a more important job than keeping TVs on.

McLain stressed the importance of reaching out, especially in times like this during the Covid-19 pandemic.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:25 AM.



P.O. Box 250007 Franklin, Michigan 48025

April 27, 2020

Cathy White Executive Director Birmingham Area Cable Board P. O. Box 165 Birmingham, MI 48012

Dear Cathy:

This letter is a formal request from the Franklin Historical Society to the Birmingham Area Cable Board to continue funding the purchase of a one year internet subscription from Comcast for the Franklin Historical Museum at 26165 Thirteen Mile Road in Franklin. The Board previously approved a grant for these costs incurred thru June 30, 2020. This request is for the time from July 1, 2020 thru June 30, 2021. On-site internet access is invaluable in allowing museum personnel to actually work at the museum rather than carry documents and files to locations with internet service. One of the major current projects that internet service has facilitated is scanning many archival documents that will be accessible to the public. We want to continue this effort.

The internet service will cost \$93.65 per month or \$1,123.80 annually.

Please let me know if you need more information. Thanks for your help.

ann Lamatt

Ann Lamott, President

CC: Heather Mydloski

Headquarters and Museum: 26165 W. 13 Mile Road @ Kirk Lane

Captioning & Interpreting

Mission Statement:

Clearview Captioning & Interpreting was founded based on a need for communication facilitation for those who are Deaf or Hard of Hearing. Our goal is effective communication in a variety of settings.

Our purpose has been established based on federal and state law, the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and a high standard of professionalism as outlined in the RID (Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf) Code of Professional Conduct.

Any questions may be directed to:

Clearview Captioning & Interpreting

(844) 522-7846 Ext:700

Service Agreement:

This Agreement for Service is made effective as of May 4, 2020, by and

between Clearview Captioning & Interpreting L.L.C. and

Birmingham Area Cable Board.

Description of Services: Clearview Captioning & Interpreting will provide services on an as needed basis to be billed per diem.

Cancellations:

-In the case of a cancellation within 24 hours of the assigned service or a client "no show", Clearview Captioning & Interpreting will bill the full amount for the scheduled assignment.

-In the case of inclement weather, Clearview Captioning & Interpreting will **not** bill for services provided there has been notice of cancellation of service at least three hours prior to the appointment.

Payment: Clearview Captioning & Interpreting will submit invoices upon completion of service and payment is due within thirty days of receipt.

(See rate sheet)



Effective 2019 Prices are listed per hour / per provider Payment shall be made to: Clearview Captioning LLC CART & C-Print Rates

	M-F 8:00AM- 6:00PM	M-F 6:00PM- 8:00AM	Weekends & Holiday	Last minute (less than 48 hr. notice)	Medical	Legal
Academic CART	\$95.00	\$105.00	\$105.00	+\$30.00	\$100.00	\$110.00
Event CART	\$120.00	\$145.00	\$145.00	+\$30.00	\$140.00	\$110.00
C-Print	\$42.00	\$52.00	\$52.00	+\$25.00	\$48.00	\$55.00

Interpreting Rates							
	M-F 8:00AM-6:00PM	M-F 6:00PM-8:00AM	Weekends & Holiday	Last minute (less than 24hr notice)			
Level 1	\$56.00	\$76.00	\$86.00	+\$25.00			
Level 2	\$66.00	\$86.00	\$96.00	+\$25.00			
Level 3	\$76.00	\$106.00	\$106.00	+25.00			

The following is not an exhaustive list but is meant to provide a few possible examples:

- Regular communication, meetings and conferences as well as non-K-12 educational settings may be performed by a level 1 interpreter.
- Anything medical or disciplinary in nature will require the services of a level 2 interpreter or higher.
- Anything of legal nature or deemed to be a high-risk situation would require a level 3 interpreter.

Signatures:

Budench

Date: May 8, 2020

Clearview Captioning & Interpreting

BHCB by: Carthy W te ector Contracting Party

Date: May 1,2020

TO: BOARD MEMBERS

FROM: BACB EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

SUBJECT: SECOND REQUEST TO APPROVE AMENDMENTS TO BACB FY2019-2020 BUDGET

BASED ON CURRENT OR EXPECTED EXPENDITURES TO DATE, IT IS NECESSARY TO AMEND THE FY2019-2020 BUDGET TO INCREASE ADDITIONAL LINE-ITEM BUDGETED AMOUNTS AS FOLLOWS:

1. INCREASE THE BUDGETED AMOUNT FOR BANK SERVICE CHARGES FROM \$60.00 TO \$150.00 TO REFLECT AMOUNTS CHARGED BY THE BANK THIS FISCAL YEAR

2. INCREASE THE AMOUNT BUDGETED FOR TRUCK EXPENSES FROM \$10,000.00. TO \$10,500.00 TO REFLECT AMOUNTS AUTHORIZED AND PAID FOR TRUCK EQUIPMENT IN THE CURRENT FISCAL YEAR

THANK YOU FOR YOUR FAVORABLE CONSIDERATION OF THIS REQUEST.

MEMORANDUM

DATE: May 12, 2020 TO: Board Members FROM: Cathy White Re: Monthly Report

CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS

We have received one (1) complaint since the date of my last report. Complaint No. 2020-7 was received from a 91-year-old Beverly Hills resident who had no service on her landline. This was especially problematic because her "Life Alert" is connected to her landline. She and her daughter both tried calling WOW and, after several difficulties getting through to a representative, were ultimately advised that WOW was having problems with its lines and that the issue would be corrected. She requested our help because there had been no progress on fixing the problem. This complaint was resolved on May 7, 2020. WOW verified that her issues were caused by a provisioning outage they were experiencing.

FINANCIAL

The account balance for the MBS, BBCU and Beverly Hills accounts as of April 30, 2020 will be emailed to all Board members, as well as BACB Financial Reports for the month of April, 2020.

CHECK DISBURSEMENT

Four (4) checks have been written since the date of our last meeting as follows:

- 1. Charter Township of Bloomfield (BCTV internet costs): \$430.05
- 2. Charter Twp of Bloomfield (Quarterly Contract Payment Apr-June 2020): \$54,100.00
- 3. The Hartford (Worker's Comp Insurance): \$335.00
- 4. United States Postal Service (Annual Post Office Box fee): \$106.00

ADDITIONAL NOTES:

- Comcast has increased the speeds of its Internet Essentials home internet service from 15/2 Mbps to 25/3 Mbps. New households that enroll will be eligible for 60 days of complimentary service. As a reminder, Internet Essentials provides \$9.95 per month home internet service exclusively to low-income households.
- 2. Comcast has notified us that although they had originally planned to move Cartoon Network to the Digital Preferred or Preferred package on May 5, 2020, this change has been deferred indefinitely. In addition, WE TV and WGN America have been added to the Entertainment Package.
- 3. Comcast has indicated that during this period of COVID-19 National Emergency, they will continue to ensure that their communications facilities and services are operating and maintained. These steps may include deploying technicians and other employees, fueling vehicles and other equipment and maintaining fulfillment and customer service centers in order to operate, access, repair or construct such facilities to prevent loss of service or to restore service.
- 4. Governing.com has provided an excellent explanation of 5G technology and what local governments can anticipate in the years ahead. The first commercial rollout of 5G occurred in 2019. Deployment is expected to begin in earnest in 2020. It will bring the biggest generational advance to date in network speed but will require new phones and devices with new chips. As an example of the increased speed, 4G allows a movie to be downloaded in 20 seconds whereas 5G allows three movies to be downloaded in 1 second. 5G transmits more data over shorter distances, reducing delays in transmissions while significantly boosting the number of devices supported per square mile. Surges in cellular network use during emergency events are less likely to slow or prevent vital communications between citizens and first responders. 5G will be the underlying infrastructure to help usher in fully autonomous vehicles, intelligent public safety cameras and connected Internet of Things (IoT) devices used throughout city infrastructure. Jurisdictions with 5G networks are likely to attract tech-savvy residents and businesses that leverage those connections for new digital business models and reach new customers.

However, 5G is not without complications and controversies. The range of 5G towers is about 1,000 feet, less than 2 percent of the range of 4G network towers. This means that hundreds of thousands, and possibly millions, of new towers will be needed. Cities are waging battles to retain their ability to control and regulate 5G towers. In addition, not every device can access 5G. As of February 2020, there are only six phones available in the U.S. that can leverage the new 5G spectrum. Although current evidence does not confirm the existence of health risks from low-level EMF exposure, scientists have called for more research. Devices that use 5G will be more expensive, adding to problems that already exist regarding digital equity. Some security concerns exist since the world leader in 5G technology is a Chinese company and American telecommunication providers are using equipment manufactured by this company in China. There are limits

for rural broadband. Finally, there are TV concerns since the FCC auctioned off large chunks of the airwaves used by some broadcast TV stations to free up spectrum for 5G providers which forced almost 1,000 to change their broadcast address. For now, the fix can be as simple as rescanning channels on television sets. These challenges have resulted in the creation of 5G network and development task forces to study and develop recommendations as to policy and state/local regulation.

5. Comcast is extending its comprehensive COVID-19 response policies to June 30, 2020. These include no disconnects and waiving late fees for those who contact Comcast first to say they cannot pay their bills during this period, free Xfinity Wi-Fi (including non-Xfinity Internet subscribers), allowing unlimited data at no additional charge and free Internet Essentials service to new customers through June 30, 2020. A map of Xfinity Wi-Fi hotspots can be found on its website. **Bloomfield Community Television**

Memorandum

loomfield

Bloomfield Township

To: BACB

From: Steve Rota

Subject: Report April 22nd, 2020 through May 20th, 2020

Date: May 14th, 2020

Cc: Greg Kowalski; Cathy White; Elaine McLain, Heather Mydloski

BAMA Programs

During this time period we've completed all regularly scheduled municipal meetings, the BACB meeting, Zoning Board meeting, the Multi-Modal Board meeting. Bingham Farms Council Meeting and the Baldwin Public Library Board Meeting.

BAPA Programs

From BACB area individual producers and organizations, we've taped 23 programs. From individuals:

- Six *Gracefully Greying* hosted by Henry Gorebein.
- Five Patriot Lessons hosted by Judge Michael Warren.
- Four About You hosted by Ellen Rogers.
- Three Boomer Health at Home hosted by Megan Girvin.
- Four Michigan Planning Today hosted by Bob Gibbs.
- Inside City Hall May Edition hosted by Joe Valentine. (By Birmingham staff)

From BACB area organizations:

✤ None at this time

PRODUCER WORKSHOP

We are offering a one on one session for those who are interested in producing their own show and to those who want experience behind the scenes. Please call 248-433-7790 and we can schedule a date and time with you.

UPCOMING EVENTS

City of Birmingham Memorial Day Services.